
MEMBER QUESTIONS 

CABINET MEETING – 20 April 2016

Question 1: Cllr Paul Hodgkinson Respondent: Cllr Nigel Moor 

Agenda Item 5: Local Transport Plan 

I chair the A419NAG (Noise Action Group). 
Last month Rory Stewart MP, Parliamentary Under Secretary of 
State in DEFRA, confirmed to me by letter that a local council can 
identify locations not already listed nationally as ‘Important Areas’ 
where those worse affected by environmental noise are located. 

Given the increasing concerns of residents in the Cotswolds about 
excessive noise from the A419/417, will the Cabinet Member commit 
to working with our group to identify stretches of this road which can 
be submitted to DEFRA?

 
Whilst the A419/417 is a Highways England road, rather than a 
county council one, I’m very happy to support local campaigns to 
address noise issues there, which I know are a real concern.

Question 2: Cllr Paul Hodgkinson Respondent: Cllr Nigel Moor 

Agenda Item 5: Local Transport Plan 

I’ve yet to receive, as promised by the previous Cabinet Member, 
Cllr Will Windsor-Clive, the definitive timeline of the proposed work 
on the A417 missing link. 

Please can the current Cabinet Member provide me with an up to 
date timeline?

As Cllr Hodgkinson is aware, the A417 is a Highways England (HE) 
operated road, because of which they determine the timetable for 
improvements. HE’s Phase 0 is currently being finalised, the 
remaining 6 phases are as follows:

 Phase 1 – options identification
 Phase 2 – option selection
 Phase 3 – detailed design
 Phase 4 – DCO process
 Phase 5 – pre-construction
 Phase 6 – construction
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HE hasn’t yet provided a definitive timeline for future phases. 
However, we expect Phases 1 and 2 will take around 12 months 
each and the Development Consent Order (DCO) process will be 
in 2019/20. The Secretary of State for Transport has committed 
that work will begin on site in 2020.

Question 3: Cllr Paul Hodgkinson Respondent: Cllr Nigel Moor 

Agenda Item 5: Local Transport Plan 

What opportunities is Gloucestershire County Council taking to raise 
the profile of the A417 missing link?

The County Council will continue to build on the success of our 
A417 Loop campaign, working with the LEP, Gloucestershire MPs 
and local residents to make the case for this scheme, which 
remains our top county transport priority.

Question 4: Cllr Iain Dobie Respondent: Cllr Andrew Gravells  

Agenda Item 9: Procure and Award a Contract to Deliver 
Community Drug and Alcohol Recovery Services for Adults 

What assurances can the Cabinet Member give that the new model 
will help more people recover from drug and alcohol related issues 
than the current one being provided?

I want to see a recovery-oriented service. To achieve this, we will 
clearly set this out in our Invitation to Tender, as well as the ways 
we might expect a provider to help more people recover from drug 
and alcohol related issues, e.g. by providing a visible and 
comprehensive abstinence offer and aftercare programme and by 
working closely with local recovery communities.  For a bidder to 
be successful, they will need to show us how their proposals will 
make a real difference.
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Question 5: Cllr Lesley Williams Respondent: Cllr Andrew Gravells  

Agenda Item 9: Procure and Award a Contract to Deliver 
Community Drug and Alcohol Recovery Services for Adults 

The Cabinet Member refers to the rolling in of contracts (item 1.11 in 
the report), and whilst we all welcome genuine efficiency gains, can 
you confirm that no funding will be reduced from these previously 
individual contracts?

The 2016/17 budget allocations for the additional contracts will be 
‘rolled in’ to the main service contract from 1st January 2017. The 
budget allocated for these services will ensure that service 
provision for these areas will continue.

Question 6: Cllr Lesley Williams Respondent: Cllr Andrew Gravells  

Agenda Item 9: Procure and Award a Contract to Deliver 
Community Drug and Alcohol Recovery Services for Adults 

The length of this contract is considerably long. 
What performance measurements have you decided on to monitor 
the quality of delivery during the life of the contract?

Officers are drawing up the specification for this service, which will 
include a suite of performance measures, against which the 
provider will be contract managed to ensure the Council 
understands the overall quality of delivery and can be assured that 
the key areas for focus for the service are being delivered. 

The full set of key performance indicators and targets are in the 
process of being finalised. However, they will include targets that 
provide a balanced reflection of the whole service, such as those 
for successful completions across different drug and alcohol user 
groups (including specific targets for successful completions by 
drug and alcohol parents); waiting times; and numbers of service 
users in treatment.
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Question 7: Cllr Brian Oosthuysen Respondent: Cllr Paul McLain 

Agenda Item 11: Post 16 Home to School Transport for Young 
People Accessing Mainstream Education  

I am alarmed at the pace and breadth of this policy shift. 
I also feel that shadow members were not briefed as to the scale of 
this proposed cut. 

You mention that there will be a document sent to all families that 
will contain some information about these changes, but will you 
commit officer time and Council resources to helping struggling 
families find alternative arrangements?
 

This proposal was discussed in some detail at the Shadows 
Meeting on 21st March. I am sorry to read that you feel you were 
not made aware of the details
 
As we discussed, only 3% of post 16 students currently take up the 
offer of discretionary support. The award is not means tested and 
as the details show, most claimants would not be described as 
being from “struggling families”.  As he is aware, there is already a 
£2m pa bursary scheme available in Gloucestershire to support 
those pupils. The council’s “What’s Next” booklet, which is posted 
to every Year 11 student’s home address, provides information 
about the bursary available. In addition it will advise parents on 
how to seek further help from the council if there is an unexpected 
problem.

As we discussed at the Shadows meeting; and outlined in my 
response to q10, the consultation was deliberately focused to 
establish and address any difficulties families might face.  As the 
report makes clear, this identified continued access to school 
buses.  Students will therefore still be able to access public 
transport or school buses.

There will be no change for students who currently receive the 
transport subsidy as long as they remain with the same provider. 
Therefore these students will not need to find alternative 
arrangements.



MEMBER QUESTIONS 

CABINET MEETING – 20 April 2016

Question 8: Cllr Brian Oosthyusen Respondent: Cllr Paul McLain 

Agenda Item 11: Post 16 Home to School Transport for Young 
People Accessing Mainstream Education  

Your resolve to monitor this policy change on an ‘ad hoc basis’ is as 
alarming.

Will you commit to providing a full policy review at the end of the 
2016/2017 academic year to judge the effects that this has had on 
our young people?
 

We will carry out a full impact review at the end of the academic 
year – this was always my intention
 
The reference to ‘ad hoc’ monitoring relates to cases brought 
before senior managers as part of the discretionary support remit. 
This provides an opportunity to consider the impact of the policy 
change on specific individual students. As you will be aware, this 
information is shared with councillors on the Home to School 
Transport Appeal Panel, who will be the final arbiter in any 
transport appeal. More details are set out in my answer to q15.
 
As the report states, the council will also monitor the annual data 
provided by the Skills Funding Agency.

Question 9: Cllr Brian Oosthyusen Respondent: Cllr Paul McLain 

Agenda Item 11: Post 16 Home to School Transport for Young 
People Accessing Mainstream Education  

What modelling have you carried out to determine the financial 
impact on families with this policy change?

Of the 3% of students that receive this subsidy today, most come 
from less deprived areas.  Families on low incomes will be able to 
apply for support from the government’s post 16 bursary through 
their school or college or apply to the council for help in exceptional 
circumstances
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Question 10: Cllr Brian Oosthyusen Respondent: Cllr Paul McLain 

Agenda Item 11: Post 16 Home to School Transport for Young 
People Accessing Mainstream Education  

This report has been noted as not providing specific feedback from 
those consulted. Most cabinet reports are happy to provide statistics 
to recommend their actions. 
What are the figures for those that were a) satisfied with this policy 
change, and b) unsatisfied with this policy change? 

The full Consultation Report is listed in the Cabinet Report under 
“Background Documents” and is available at 
www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/applyforabuspass
 
Whilst the consultation was advertised to all families and students 
through schools and colleges, we specifically targeted those 
students who we knew would be most affected by a policy change. 
We arranged face to face meetings in key areas of the county 
which resulted in a greater level of response from students who 
might be more affected. We did this to identify the potential impact 
of withdrawing assistance for affected students rather than seeking 
general views, from the 97% of students and families who have 
never sought to take up discretionary transport support.

Question 11: Cllr Paul McMahon Respondent: Cllr Kathy Williams 

Agenda Item 16: Financial Monitoring Report 2015/16

Please detail why there was a £0.2m underspend in Learning 
Disability Services.

The Electronic Call Monitoring programme has been more 
successful than we initially expected, which has helped us to 
deliver more savings than expected in a very challenging an 
unpredictable budget area.

http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/applyforabuspass
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Question 12: Cllr Steve Lydon Respondent: Cllr Dorcas Binns 

Agenda Item 16: Financial Monitoring Report 2015/16

Are you confident in your department’s ability to forecast service 
use, or is this a case of under-budgeting and overspending? 

Council officers use the most effective methods available to 
estimate our future demand – and we then benchmark those 
predictions against the ones made in areas that are like 
Gloucestershire.

Question 13: Cllr Lesley Williams Respondent: Cllr Paul McLain 

Agenda Item 16: Financial Monitoring Report 2015/16

Please provide an update of how investment in children’s social 
workers is being utilised. 

We now have a detailed plan in place to allocate additional 
resource to teams. We are prioritising the front door teams as this 
is so important in managing the whole system and teams with 
higher caseloads and high numbers of agency workers. Of course 
the plan will need constant revision given the volatility of need in 
this area. We have already been able to recruit 25 new social 
workers, who will be in place by September. I'd be happy to share 
more details.

Question 14: Cllr Graham Morgan Respondent: Cllr Nigel Moor 

Agenda Item 16: Financial Monitoring Report 2015/16

As there is a £0.38m underspend in registration services, what 
reinvestment will there be in the service so that we do not have a 
repeat of this year’s death certification debacle? 

Registration Services have a planned £40,000 infrastructure 
investment programmed for this financial year. The investment will 
seek to achieve a better customer experience and workflow for 
centralised managers to ensure that the service continues to 
provide a fit for purpose public service.
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The Registration Service did suffer from problems with long-term 
staff sickness last year.  In future, the service is looking into the 
possibility of developing a pool of trained “on-call” Registration 
Officers to provide more resilience, as well as working more closely 
with the council’s customer service team.

Question 15: Cllr Richard Leppington   Respondent: Cllr Paul McLain 

Agenda Item 11: Post 16 Home to School Transport for Young 
People Accessing Mainstream Education  

I note that ‘the financial situation of the family will be taken into 
account when determining the appropriate level of subsidy to be 
offered’.  

Can the Cabinet Member provide more detailed information on what 
financial considerations will be used to determine a student’s 
eligibility?

We will use the established process for considering requests for 
support with home to school transport which are outside our policy.
 
Senior officers consider each case to determine whether there are 
exceptional circumstances which mean a student will not be able to 
access education without support. Parents seeking support on 
financial grounds will need to provide information about their 
financial situation; typically students who receive support are from 
families who qualify for tax credits. We will also consider families 
who are struggling financially in the short term but who would not 
qualify for the bursary.
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Question 16: Cllr Iain Dobie Respondent: Cllr Andrew Gravells  

Agenda Item 10: Decision to Procure and Award a Contract to 
Deliver a Remodelled Healthy Lifestyles Service 

Please can the Cabinet Member give examples of the lifestyles 
support that will be offered to those in greatest need and those who 
are less able to help themselves?

Information and support across the range of unhealthy lifestyles 
(smoking, poor diet, physical inactivity, excess body weight or 
excess alcohol) will be available either on-line or by telephone

Staff and volunteers will be trained to tell people about the service 
and to support those who need help to access the service.

Everyone will have access to comprehensive ‘self-care’ resources 
including information on local community activities.  

Those who need additional support will be offered a 
comprehensive lifestyles assessment and individualised ‘coaching’ 
to make a lifestyle change, for example to stop smoking or losing 
weight. 

The number of sessions, method of delivery (face to face, 
telephone, group support etc) and length of intervention will vary 
according to individual needs.

‘Coaching’ support will be provided by practitioners skilled in 
behaviour change, including specialists in particular areas such as 
stopping smoking. 

Referral to community based weight management groups will be 
available for those at highest health risk. 


